PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Date: Wednesday 11 March 2020
Time: 6.30 pm
Venue: Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley, Councillor Pete Elliott, Councillor Peter Ely and Councillor
Iain Simpson (Chair)

Members without voting rights
Desmond Farry – Pensioner Representative
Shankar Siva Ananthan – Staff Representative
Peter Woodward – Trades Union Representative

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Neda Chagleva, Telephone: 0207 926 3066; Email: NChagleva@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and the Town Hall is fully accessible. If you
have any specific needs please contact Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests

2.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

1 - 10

To agree the minutes of the meeting of 20 November 2019 as an accurate
record of the meeting.

3.

Investment Performance Report

11 - 34

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for
Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions, 020
7926 0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

4.

Lambeth Pension Fund - Audit 2019/2020 Plan

35 - 52

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926
0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

5.

Lambeth Pension Fund - Risk Register

53 - 68

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions –
07854 752186, ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

6.

Investment Performance Manager Report (Part ii)

69 - 114

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926
0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

7.

London CIV Presentation (Part ii)

115 - 120

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926
0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

8.

Investment Strategy Report (Part ii)

121 - 174

Wards: All
Report authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926
0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For discussion and approval

9.

Action Log and Work Programme
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Treasury and Pensions,
020 7926 0576, ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk
For noting

175 - 182

Agenda Item 2

Page 1

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday 20 November 2019 at 6.30 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley (Deputy Chair),
Councillor Pete Elliott and Councillor Peter Ely
Co-Opted
Members:
Representative)

APOLOGIES:

Peter

Woodward

(Trade

Union

Councillor Iain Simpson
Co-Opted Members: Desmond Farry (Pensioner Representative)

ALSO PRESENT:

Action
required by

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

2.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
Councillor Ian Simpson had raised a query on page 6 of the minutes
regarding the Liability Driven Investment (LDI) benchmark investments.
Andrien Meyers advised that under the London CIV, Legal & General
Investment Management Limited (LGIM) had been asked to clarify what
investments were held.
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2019 were agreed
as a correct record and signed.
It was noted that the print size on meeting paper packs had been increased
for certain members as had previously been requested.

3.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT
Steven Law (Hymans Robertson), Tony English (Mercer Investment
Consulting), Sandy Dickson (Mercer Investment Consulting) and Andrien
Meyers, Head of Treasury and Pensions; presented the report and
answered questions as below:


Andrien Meyers reported that over the period, the value of the Fund
had increased by £10 million. This level of performance was not upto-par. Furthermore, the report showed a 6% growth over the 3year period, which was 0.5% below the benchmark. This further
highlighted the shortage of the investment manager performance.





European markets had fallen.
Global equities had increased.
Benchmark underperformance is likely to be due to fixed issues
rather than the markets.

Page 2


The current benchmarks were challenging in the current climate.

A query was raised on what was challenging about the current conditions.


Mercer advised that 8% achieved over the long term, makes it
harder to achieve over short term. The main difficulty lies with
determining benchmark figures for Property and DGF. Managers
were facing significant challenges in the current climate, which had
not existed at the time that the benchmarks were proposed and
agreed by the investment managers.

Andrien Meyers advised that the Lambeth Pension Fund had two DGF’s
with LCIV, namely Ruffer and Pyrford, and as an asset class, DGF had
underperformed. This was something that the Lambeth Pension Fund are
taking into account in the strategy review. This matter was also being
looked into by other London Pension Funds.
A query was raised on what exactly were Senior Loans?


Andrien Meyers advised that Senior Loans are private debt
allocations to Permira and Churchill and were deemed as a
relatively safe risk. £75-80m commitment circa only 10million
actually invested.

A further query was raised on why performance had been so low for the
quarter. It was thought that it might be a common issue in the market, but it
may have also reflected the long-term risk level of the investments.
Andrien Meyers advised that the Fund’s fossil fuel exposure was currently
1.6% of assets (as noted in the papers) section 2.23, page 39, which also
gave the breakdown of fossil fuel holdings by investment manager.
Members enquired if there is a breakdown of the fossil fuel holdings of
each investment manager. Members were advised that this list exists and
is with the officers.
Andrien Meyers advised the Committee hasn’t specifically stated that it has
a policy on fossil fuels, even though the Chair advised on carbon neutrality
during the previous meeting. Committee approved to be fossil fuel free on
the equity portion of the fund and that they were happy to move to fossil
fuel free.
It was noted that at a previous meeting, a declaration of no investments in
fossil fuels had been made. However, this class may have been confused
with the category of ‘carbon neutral’, which did not necessarily equate to
fossil fuel free. Clarity / consistency in reporting was requested.
A request was made by the Committee for future reports to contain trend
graphs.
Mercer to provide bar chart format.
The Committee noted that the bar in the gilts graph could be seen as high.
Mercers reminded the Committee that when interest rates went down, gilt
performance went up as a result of Quantitative Easing (QE).

Page 3
RESOLVED:
1.
That the report, together with the information in the
accompanying exempt from disclosure report, be noted.
4.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE MANAGER REPORT (PART II)
Exclusion of the press and public and summary of part II proceedings.
RESOLVED:
That under section 100A-H of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds
that, for the item of business summarised below, it was likely that exempt
information, as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12a of the Local
Government Act 1972 and as specified by reference to the appropriate
paragraph thereof, would be disclosed to them:
1.

5.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person including the authority holding that information.

LONDON CIV UPDATE (PART II)
Exclusion of the press and public and summary of part II proceedings.
RESOLVED:
That under section 100A-H of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds
that, for the item of business summarised below, it was likely that exempt
information, as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12a of the Local
Government Act 1972 and as specified by reference to the appropriate
paragraph thereof, would be disclosed to them:
1.

6.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person including the authority holding that information.

TRIENNIAL VALUATION 2019 (PART II)
Exclusion of the press and public and summary of part II proceedings.
RESOLVED:
That under section 100A-H of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds
that, for the item of business summarised below, it was likely that exempt
information, as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12a of the Local
Government Act 1972 and as specified by reference to the appropriate
paragraph thereof, would be disclosed to them:
1.

7.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person including the authority holding that information.

LDI IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY (PART II)
Exclusion of the press and public and summary of part II proceedings.
RESOLVED:
That under section 100A-H of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds
that, for the item of business summarised below, it was likely that exempt
information, as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12a of the Local
Government Act 1972 and as specified by reference to the appropriate
paragraph thereof, would be disclosed to them:

Page 4
1.
8.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person including the authority holding that information.

ACTION LOG AND WORK PROGRAMME
During the discussion of this item, the guillotine fell at 8.30pm.
It was MOVED by the Chair, and, RESOLVED, that the meeting
continue for a period not exceeding 30 minutes.”
RESOLVED:
That in accordance with Standing Order 9.5-9.7, the meeting
continue for a further period of up to 30 minutes.




LDI Training to be added to action log as soon as consultation
has been concluded.
Training on investment strategies also to be added to action
log.

CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at Time Not
Specified
CHAIR

Date of Despatch: Thursday 28 November 2019
Contact for Enquiries: Shaughna Phillips
Tel: 020 7926 0045
Fax: 020 7926 2361
E-mail: SPhillips4@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal record.

Page 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 3

PENSION COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2020
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Investment Performance Review – 31 December 2019
Wards: All
Portfolio: Councillor Andrew Wilson, Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926 9153,
ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
The Pensions Committee reviews Fund Managers' performance on a quarterly basis in order to assess
the performance of the Council's Pension Fund investments and the market outlook.
This report informs Members of the Fund Managers’ performance as measured by Mercer, the Fund's
investment adviser and keeps Members up to date on managing the implemented Investment strategy.

Finance summary
There are no direct financial implications in agreeing this report. For the quarter ended 31 December 2019
the Pension Fund costs in respect of Fund Managers’ fees totalled £1,853,366.75 of which only
£112,084.12 was remitted; the remainder was deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s net
asset value. The Pension Fund meets all fees and there is no additional financial implication for the
Council.

Recommendations
1.

That the report, together with the information in the accompanying exempt from disclosure report,
be noted.

Page 12
1

CONTEXT

1.1

The Pensions Committee reviews performance of the Council’s Pension Fund investments and
administration on a quarterly basis and considers the market outlook. In addition, the Committee
considers the Council's Pension Fund arrangements and pension policy issues. The following
narrative provides headlines from the investment performance report from Mercer.

2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

Performance to 31 December 2019
The Fund underperformed the benchmark over the quarter to 31 December 2019, primarily as a
result of underperformance of the property portfolio managed by Invesco.

2.2

The Fund has also underperformed the benchmark over the three and five year periods to 31
December 2019, in part due to Diversified Growth Funds underperforming their cash +5% target
benchmarks

2.3

The Fund outperformed the benchmark over the one year period to 31 December 2019.

2.4

The market value of the Fund as at 31 December was £1,516.0m showing a modest decrease of
£3.4m or 0.22% over the previous quarter (30 September was £1,519.4m).

2.5

The full performance report from Mercer is attached as Appendix 1. The tables showing Fund
Managers’ performance for three months, one year, three years, and five years, and asset
allocations are re-produced below:

Page 13

2.6
2.7

2.8

2.9

Rebalancing Framework
As at 31 December 2019, the Fund's asset allocation was most notably overweight to global equity.
As the Fund moves towards its agreed target benchmark, we would anticipate that any deviations
from the benchmark will be corrected by the transitioning of assets to new asset classes and
managers. Further information on this can be found on page 3 of Appendix One.
Cashflow movements
Over the quarter to 31 December 2019, there were notable investments and disinvestments made
within the Fund. A summary of these changes can be found below:
 Over the quarter, net cash outflow totaling c. £3.8m were transferred from the transition (cash)
account, this is made up of £1.7m for Churchill and £2.1m was Permira.
 Over the quarter £75m was a divestment from Corporate Bonds with Insight as requested by
committee out of which £60m was invested with an Insight Money Market Fund as approved
by committee and the balance of £15m used to cover benefit payments and operational
expenses.
 £5.6m was contributed into Churchill and £1.8m to Permira both Private Debt/Credit managers
as part of the implementation of the investment strategy.
 Distributions of, c. £2.7m were received from Adam Street, and c. £1.2m was received from
the Invesco European property portfolio.
Fund management fees
The Pension Fund costs in respect of Fund Managers’ fees totalled £1,853,366.75 of which only
£112,084.12 was remitted; the remainder was deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s
net asset value. Fees are calculated on market value of the portfolio as at the end of the quarter after
adjusting for fund managers’ internal funds. All fees are met by the Pension Fund.
Funding Level as at 31 December 2019

Page 14
2.10 The funding level at the last formal valuation as at 31 March 2019 was 83%. The funding level has
increased from 80%.
Implementation of Investment Strategy
2.11 The progress update on the implementation of our Investment Strategy can be found in Appendix
Two. All changes recommended and approved by Committee by the deep dive investment strategy
review carried out in 2017 are now complete.

3

FINANCE

3.1

This report outlines the financial performance of the Pension Fund over the quarter to 31
December 2019. There are no further financial implications in agreeing to the recommendations in
this report.

4

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Transitional Provisions) Regulations 1997 enacted along with other Regulations under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and is for the benefit of Council
employees and outside organisations, which have entered into an agreement with Lambeth to
provide pensions for their staff.

4.2

The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the best possible financial
return on the investments it administers within the investment strategy framework.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Not Applicable.

6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee should bear in mind at all
times. Generally, risk is taken to mean the Variability of Returns. Investments with greater Risk must
usually promise higher Returns than more ‘stable’ Investments before investors will buy them.

6.2

Members must consider the risk/reward trade-off. Generally, the higher the potential return expected
the higher the associated risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees bear that risk.

7

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

None.

8

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental

Page 15
9.1

None for the purposes of this report.

9.2

Health
None for the purposes of this report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purposes of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purposes of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purposes of this report.

10

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

10.1 None.

Page 16
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew Wilson
Fiona McDermott, Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director
Hamant Bharadia, Assistant
Director
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Neda Chagleva,
Democratic Services
External - Mercer

Lambeth directorate/
division or partner
Cabinet Member for Finance

26.02.20

Date
Received
03.03.20

Finance and Investment

26.02.20

03.03.20

Finance and Property

26.02.20

Finance and property

26.02.2

02.03.20

Legal and Governance

26.02.20

27.02.20

Section 4

Legal and Governance

26.02.20

03.03.20

4.3

Consultant

26.02.20

26.02.20

Throughou
t

Date Sent

Comment
s in para:

Throughou
t

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
27.02.20
03.03.20
No
No
N/A
N/A
See Part II Report
 Appendix One – London Borough of Lambeth
Pension Fund Performance Report Dec 2019
 Appendix Two – Investment Strategy 2017
Implementation plan status update March 2020.

HEALTH WEALTH CAREER

LAMBETH PENSION
FUND
QUARTER TO 31 DECEMBER
2019

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

Page 17

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
REPORT

0

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

Page 18

ASSET CLASS OVERVIEW
AND PERFORMANCE

1

1

AS S E T AL L O C AT I O N B Y AS S E T C L AS S
Actual Asset Allocation
Asset Class

(£m)
254.2
53.5
507.5
151.0
131.2
42.3
202.0
1.1
68.1
77.8
10.6
20.1
1519.4

End of Quarter Start of Quarter End of Quarter
(£m)
178.4
48.9
521.3
151.3
126.0
42.2
204.4
0.8
62.1
79.0
18.5
83.1
1516.0

(%)
16.7
3.5
33.4
9.9
8.6
2.8
13.3
0.1
4.5
5.1
0.7
1.3
100.0

(%)
11.8
3.2
34.4
10.0
8.3
2.8
13.5
0.1
4.1
5.2
1.2
5.5
100.0

Target
Benchmark
(%)
15.0
30.0
10.0
12.0
18.0
5.0
5.0
5.0
100.0

Page 19

Bonds
LDI
Global Equity
Emerging Markets Equity
Property
UK Private Rented Sector Property
Diversified Growth
SPV
Private Equity
Multi Asset Credit
Private Debt
Cash
Total

Start of
Quarter

Source: Investment Managers and Mercer.
Figures may not sum to total due to rounding.
Benchmark allocation includes the private equity portfolio managed by Adams Street. For performance measurement purposes we exclude the allocation to private equity. See Appendix A for further details.
Diversified Growth asset class is composed by the Ruffer and Pyrford’s absolute return, and Aviva’s multi-strategy portfolios.
Private Equity and Senior Loans end of quarter valuations were estimated based on the capital calls occurred over the quarter.
Private Debt valuation was converted from USD to GBP at the appropriate USD/GBP exchange rate.
Cash includes assets held by State Street and the transition account, Majedie and RREEF.

Rebalancing Framework
• As at 31 December 2019, the Fund's asset allocation was most notably overweight to global equity.
• As the Fund moves towards its agreed target benchmark we would anticipate that any deviations from the benchmark will be corrected by the
transitioning of assets to new asset classes and managers.

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

2

DEVELOPMENTS OVER THE QUARTER TO 31 DECEMBER
2019
Cashflow movements
Over the quarter to 31 December 2019, there were a few notable investments and disinvestments made
within the Fund. A summary of these changes can be found below:
Over the quarter £75.0m was disinvested from the bonds portfolio managed by Insight, these monies are
being held in a money market fund at Insight pending drawdowns from the Funds Private Debt managers.

•

During the quarter, c. £5.4m was drawn down by Churchill and £2.7m by Permira.

•

There was a net distribution from the Adam Street Partners Private Equity holdings of $1.4m at the end of
December which is one of the reasons for the fall in the Private equity holding valuation.

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

Page 20

•

3

ASSET CLASS PERFORMANCE TO 31 DECEMBER 2019,
NET OF FEES
Last Quarter
Asset Class
Global Equity
Emerging Markets Equity

Fund
(%)
2.7

B'mark
(%)
1.2

Last Year

Last 3 Years

Last 5 Years

Fund
(%)

B'mark
(%)

Fund
(% p.a.)

B'mark
(% p.a.)

Fund
(% p.a.)

B'mark
(% p.a.)

27.4

22.6

13.1

10.2

14.3

12.5

4.0

3.1

13.8

-

-

-

-

Property

-3.0

2.0

-3.3

8.0

4.3

8.0

7.3

8.0

SPV

-9.9

1.4

-36.8

5.9

-

-

-

-

Diversified Growth

1.2

1.4

8.4

5.7

1.1

5.3

1.0

5.2

Multi-Asset Credit

1.3

1.2

6.4

4.9

-

-

-

-

Bonds

-0.4

-0.7

9.4

9.3

3.9

3.9

4.6

4.5

LDI

-8.6

-8.7

-7.9

-8.0

-3.8

-3.9

-

-

UK Private Rented Sector Property

0.0

0.0

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total (ex-Adams Street)

0.5

0.7

11.8

11.5

5.5

6.2

6.9

7.4

Page 21

0.2

Figures shown are net of fees and based on performance provided by the Investment Managers, Mercer estimates and Thomson Reuters Datastream.
For periods over one year the figures in the table above have been annualised.
Total Scheme returns include quarterly returns for Private Debt calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach based on data provided by Churchill, Invesco and Thomson Reuters Datastream. Over the long
term returns are chain linked using quarterly Total Fund returns.
Property benchmark return taken as an absolute return target of 8% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
SPV benchmark return taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +5% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
Diversified Growth asset class is composed by Ruffer and Pyrford’s absolute return portfolios and Aviva’s multi-strategy portfolio.
Multi-Asset Credit benchmark return taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
Private Debt and UK Private Rented Sector Property figures shown for all periods are calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach over each period and are based on data provided by Permira, Churchill,
Invesco and Thomson Reuters Datastream.

• The Fund underperformed the benchmark over the quarter to 31 December 2019, primarily as a result of underperformance of the SPV portfolio,
property managed by Invesco and senior loans managed by Churchill.
• The Fund has also underperformed the benchmark over the three and five year periods to 31 December 2019, in part due to DGFs
underperforming their cash +5% target benchmarks. The Fund outperformed the benchmark over the one year period to 31 December 2019.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

4

AS S E T AL L O C AT I O N B Y M AN A G E R
Actual Asset Allocation
Manager

Start of Quarter
(£m)
254.2
53.5
222.0
285.5
151.0
130.9
42.3
1.1
68.1
63.4
57.3
81.3
77.8
0.3
7.0
3.6
20.1
1,519.4

178.4
48.9
221.8
299.4
151.3
125.7
42.2
0.8
62.1
64.0
57.7
82.7
79.0
0.3
11.8
6.8
60.0
23.1
1,516.0

Start of Quarter
(%)

End of Quarter (%)

16.7
3.5
14.6
18.8
9.9
8.6
2.8
0.1
4.5
4.2
3.8
5.4
5.1
0.0
0.5
0.3
1.3
100.0

11.8
3.2
14.6
19.7
10.0
8.3
2.8
0.1
4.1
4.2
3.8
5.5
5.2
0.0
0.8
0.4
4.0
1.5
100.0

Target
Benchmark
(%)
15.0
15.0
15.0
10.0
12.0
5.0
6.0
6.0
6.0
5.0
5.0
100.0

Source: Investment Managers and Mercer.
Figures may not sum to total due to rounding.
Benchmark allocation includes the private equity portfolio managed by Adams Street. For performance measurement purposes we exclude the allocation to
private equity. See Appendix A for further details.
Adams Street and Churchill end of quarter valuations were estimated based on the capital calls occurred over the quarter.
Churchill valuation was converted from USD to GBP at the appropriate USD/GBP exchange rate.
Transition account represents assets held by State Street. Foreign currency accounts balances were converted to GBP using the prevailing start and end of
quarter exchange rate. Includes cash held by Majedie.
RREEF valuation at the end of quarter assumed to be the same as at start of quarter due to unavailability of data at the time of writing.

• As at 31 December 2019, the Fund's manager allocation was most notably overweight to Baillie Gifford.

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

5

Page 22

Insight (Bonds)
Insight (LDI)
MFS
Baillie Gifford
London CIV (EM Equity)
Invesco (Property)
Invesco (UK PRS)
PAAMCO (SPV)
Adams Street
Ruffer
Pyrford
Aviva
CQS
RREEF
Churchill
Permira
Insight (Cash)
Transition Account
Total

End of Quarter
(£m)

INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE TO 31 DECEMBER
2019, NET OF FEES
Manager
Insight (Bonds)

Last Quarter
Fund
B'mark
(%)
(%)
-0.4
-0.7

Last Year
Fund
B'mark
(%)
(%)
9.3
9.4

Last 3 Years
Fund
B'mark
(% p.a.)
(% p.a.)
3.9
3.9

Last 5 Years
Fund
B'mark
(% p.a.)
(% p.a.)
4.6
4.5

-8.6

-8.7

-7.9

-8.0

-3.8

-3.9

-

-

MFS

-0.1

1.0

26.1

22.7

11.5

10.0

13.3

12.3

Baillie Gifford

4.9

1.5

27.8

22.4

14.6

10.5

15.2

12.6

London CIV (EM Equity)

0.2

4.0

3.1

13.8

-

-

-

-

Invesco (Property)

-3.0

2.0

-3.3

8.0

4.3

8.0

7.3

8.0

Invesco (UK PRS)

0.0

0.0

-

-

-

-

-

-

-9.9

1.4

-36.8

5.9

-

-

-

-

Ruffer

1.0

1.4

8.9

5.9

-

-

-

-

Pyrford

0.7

1.4

5.4

5.9

-

-

-

-

Aviva

1.7

1.3

10.1

5.3

0.4

5.0

-

-

CQS

1.3

1.2

6.4

4.9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.5

0.7

11.8

11.5

5.5

6.2

6.9

7.4

PAAMCO (SPV)

Churchill
Permira
Total (ex-Adams Street)

Page 23

Insight (LDI)

Figures shown are net of fees and based on performance provided by the Investment Managers, Mercer estimates and Thomson Reuters Datastream.
For periods over one year the figures in the table above have been annualised.
Total Scheme returns include quarterly returns for Invesco (Private Debt) and Churchill calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach based on data provided by investment managers and Thomson Reuters Datastream.
Over the long term returns are chain linked using quarterly Total Fund returns.
Invesco (property) benchmark return taken as absolute return target of 8% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
PAAMCO, Ruffer and Pyrford benchmark returns taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +5% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
Aviva benchmark return taken as 6 Month Sterling LIBOR +4.3% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
CQS benchmark return taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4% p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
RREEF performance excludes performance of the existing cash portfolio and any historical performance of the Core Property fund. Performance over the quarter assumed as 0% due to unavailability of data at the time of writing.
Invesco (UK Private Rented Sector Property) figures shown for all periods are calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach over each period and are based on data provided
Performance data on Permira and Churchill will be provided as the mandates are built up and meaningful performance can be provided.

• The Fund outperformed the benchmark over the one year period to 31 December 2019 but underperformed the benchmark over all other
periods shown to 31 December 2019.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

6

MARKET BACKGROUND
Page 24

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

7

7

MARKET BACKGROUND
GROWTH ASSET PERFORMANCE – Q4 2019
4.2

Sterling Return

UK Equities

Growth Market Review

Local Currency Return

1.5

Global Equity

7.9

Global equity markets rallied over the quarter, returning 1.5% in sterling
terms but 7.9% in local currency. The post-election rally in sterling eroded
most of the gains for unhedged UK investors.

1.3

Overseas Equities

8.0

1.6

US Equities

9.2

Europe (ex-UK)
Equities

5.3

0.2

Japanese Equities

8.4

1.6
5.9

Asia Pacific (exJapan) Equities

Emerging markets ended the quarter as the best performing equity sector
due to the prospect of trade tensions beginning to ease, with returns of
4.0% in sterling terms, (9.9% local). Accommodative monetary policy in
both developed and emerging countries signalled an easing in financial
conditions globally.

4.0
9.9

Emerging Markets
Equities

1.7
9.3

Global Small Cap
Equities

1.6
2.6

Hedge Funds

Page 25

US equities returned 1.6% in sterling terms, compared to 9.2% in local
currency. Investors sentiment was lifted by the Federal Reserve
maintaining its loose policy, the ‘phase 1’ trade agreement between the
US and China and ratification of USMCA.

0.9

-3.8
2.8

European (ex UK) equities returned 0.9% in sterling terms (5.3% local).

High Yield Bonds
-2.1
1.6

Emerging Market
Debt

Global small cap stocks outperformed global equities (up by 1.7% in
sterling terms but 9.3% in local currency) as risk-on sentiment was
boosted over the quarter.

0.3

Property
0.7
8.3

Commodities
-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

Total Return (%)

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

8

MARKET BACKGROUND
DEFENSIVE ASSET PERFORMANCE – Q4 2019
Over 15 Year Gilts

Bond Market Review

-6.6

Over 5 Year IndexLinked Gilts

Sterling Return

All yield curves shifted up and steepened marginally. The quarter saw a return of bullish market
sentiment, which reduced demand for safe-haven assets.

Local Currency Return
-9.4

Global Bonds

The UK yield curve shifted up over the quarter, in line with other developed market yield curves. Less
political uncertainty could aid economic growth, which would reduce the Bank of England’s dovish
stance.

-6.8
-0.8

UK Credit

-0.7

Real yields increased over the quarter, reflecting the increase in nominal gilt yields and inflation
expectations falling considerably, especially at shorter tenors, following the post-election sterling rally.
CPI inflation remained below the Bank of England’s 2% target over the quarter. This March, the UK will
begin consultation on a move towards the harmonization of RPI and CPI (RPI is the basis on which
most index-linked gilts are currently re-priced). This could have a material impact on index-linked gilt
holders. The markets initial reaction has been to reduce long-dated breakevens, while leaving
breakevens for less than 10-year maturities largely unchanged.

-5.2

Global Credit

1.9

-7.0

Eurozone
Government Bonds

-2.9

Page 26

0.2

Cash
-15

-10

-5

0
Total Return (%)

5

10

15

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

Changes in the Nominal Yield Curve over the Quarter

Changes in the Real Yield Curve over the Quarter

4.0

4.0

3.0

3.0
Real Yield (%) as at 31/12/2019 (left hand scale)

Nominal Yield (%) as at 31/12/2019 (left hand scale)
Real Yield (%) as at 30/9/2019 (left hand scale)

2.0

Nominal Yield (%) as at 30/9/2019 (left hand scale)

3.0

2.0

2.0

1.0

1.0

0.0

2.0

Yield Change Over Quarter (right hand scale)

3.0

Yield Change Over Quarter (right hand scale)

1.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

-1.0

-1.0

-2.0

-2.0

-3.0

-3.0

0.0

-1.0

-1.0
1

5

Source: Mercer.

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Term (years)

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

45

50

-4.0

-4.0
1

5

Source: Mercer.

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Term (years)

9

MARKET BACKGROUND
INDEX PERFORMANCE
Return over the 12 months to 31 December 2019
40.0
Sterling Return

30.0

Local Currency Return

20.0
10.0
0.0
-10.0

Page 27

Return p.a. over the 3 years to 31 December 2019
20.0
Sterling Return

Local Currency Return

10.0
0.0
-10.0

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

10

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

Page 28

APPENDIX A
SUMMARY OF MANDATES

11

11

S U M M A RY O F M A N D AT E S
Outperformance target
(% p.a.)

Expected
Volatility

+1% p.a.
(gross of fees)

3% p.a.

Hedge 10% of Liabilities

-

-

Global Equity

MSCI World (NDR) Index

+2% p.a.
(gross of fees)

2% - 8% p.a.

Baillie Gifford (London CIV)

Global Equity

MSCI AC World Index

2% - 3% p.a.
(gross of fees)

3% - 7% p.a.

JP Morgan (London CIV)

Emerging Markets Equity

MSCI Emerging Markets (NDR) Index

+2.5% p.a (net of fees)

-

Invesco

Property

Absolute return of 8% p.a.

PAAMCO

SPV

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

Pyrford (London CIV)

Absolute Return

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

Ruffer (London CIV)

Absolute Return

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

Aviva

Multi-Strategy

6 Month Sterling LIBOR

CQS (London CIV)

Multi-Asset Credit

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

Adams Street

Private Equity

Zero Performance Benchmark

Churchill

Private Debt

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

+4% p.a.
(net of fees)

-

Permira

Private Debt

3 Month Sterling LIBOR

-

-

MSCI UK All Property Index

-

-

Manager

Mandate

Benchmark

Insight

Bonds

Markit iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilts Index

Insight

LDI

MFS

-

Page 29

Invesco
UK PRS
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

Absolute return of 8% p.a.
(net of fees)
+5% p.a.
(net of fees)
+5% p.a.
(net of fees)
+5% p.a.
(gross of fees)
+5% p.a.
(gross of fees)
+4% p.a.
(net of fees)
3% p.a.
(gross of fees)

4% - 8% p.a.

4% - 6% p.a.
-

12

I M P O R TA N T N O T I C E S
References to Mercer shall be construed to include Mercer LLC and/or its associated companies.
© 2020 Mercer LLC. All rights reserved.
This contains confidential and proprietary information of Mercer and is intended for the exclusive use of the parties to whom it was provided by Mercer. Its content may not
be modified, sold or otherwise provided, in whole or in part, to any other person or entity, without Mercer’s prior written permission.

The findings, ratings and/or opinions expressed herein are the intellectual property of Mercer and are subject to change without notice. They are not intended to convey any
guarantees as to the future performance of the investment products, asset classes or capital markets discussed. Past performance does not guarantee future results.
Mercer’s ratings do not constitute individualized investment advice.
Information contained herein has been obtained from a range of third party sources. While the information is believed to be reliable, Mercer has not sought to verify it
independently. As such, Mercer makes no representations or warranties as to the accuracy of the information presented and takes no responsibility or liability (including for
indirect, consequential or incidental damages), for any error, omission or inaccuracy in the data supplied by any third party.

Page 30

This does not contain regulated investment advice in respect of actions you should take. No investment decision should be made based on this information without
obtaining prior specific, professional advice relating to your own circumstances. Delete if report includes regulated advice.

This does not constitute an offer or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell securities, commodities and/or any other financial instruments or products or constitute a
solicitation on behalf of any of the investment managers, their affiliates, products or strategies that Mercer may evaluate or recommend.
For the most recent approved ratings of an investment strategy, and a fuller explanation of their meanings, contact your Mercer representative.
For Mercer’s conflict of interest disclosures, contact your Mercer representative or see www.mercer.com/conflictsofinterest.
Mercer’s universes are intended to provide collective samples of strategies that best allow for robust peer group comparisons over a chosen timeframe. Mercer does not
assert that the peer groups are wholly representative of and applicable to all strategies available to investors. Optional - include if Mercer Universe data is included.
Please also note:
•

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you may not get back the amount you have invested. In addition investments denominated in a foreign
currency will fluctuate with the value of the currency.

•

The valuation of investments in property based portfolios, including forestry, is generally a matter of a valuer’s opinion, rather than fact.

•

When there is no (or limited) recognised or secondary market, for example, but not limited to property, hedge funds, private equity, infrastructure, forestry, swap and
other derivative based funds or portfolios it may be difficult for you to obtain reliable information about the value of the investments or deal in the investments.

•

Where the investment is via a fund of funds the investment manager typically has to rely on the underlying managers for valuations of the interests in their funds.

•

Care should be taken when comparing private equity / infrastructure performance (which is generally a money-weighted performance) with quoted investment
performance (which is generally a time-weighted performance). Direct comparisons are not always possible.

Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

13

Page 31

Mercer Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority Registered in England No. 984275.
Registered Office: 1 Tower Place West, Tower Place, London EC3R 5BU.
Copyright © 2020 Mercer Limited. All rights reserved.

14

This page is intentionally left blank

2.2 Appendix Two Investment Strategy 2017 Implementation Monitoring

Investment Strategy Implementation Plan
Jun-17
2017/18 Phase
Phase One
Terminate hedge fund mandate with
Complete
PAAMCO

Sep-17

Dec-17

Mar-18

Jul-18

Dec-18

Mar-19

Complete

Re-consider mandate with Standard Life

In Process

With
Committee

Complete

Re-balancing any overweight positions

In Process

Ongoing

With
Committee

Nov-19

Mar-20

Target
Completion

Jun-17
Sep-17
Complete

Complete

NEW: Move MFS to LCIV Sustainable
Equity

DD on LCIV

With
Committee
(Rejected)

NEW: Move LCIV JH to LCIV JPM
Phase Two
Move UK Equity mandate with Majeedie to
Complete
CIV
Stepped approach to divesting from
In Process
Majeedie
Invest proceeds with London CIV Emerging
In Process
Markets

With
Committee
With
Committee

Top-up Property

In Process

Awaiting
LCIV
With Committee DD on LCIV
Complete
Appointment
of Manager
LCIV to terminate DD on LCIV Complete

Mar-20

Dec-19

Jun-17
Complete
With
Committee
With
Committee

In Process

Informed
Manager

Invest proceeds in Private Credit

In Process

In Process

Procurement

Invest proceeds in Multi Asset Credit

In Process

In Process

Procurement

Dec-17
Complete

Sep-17

Complete

Dec-17

With
Committee
With
Assessment
Committee
With
Assessment
Committee
In Process

Complete

Jul-18

Complete

Jul-18

Complete

Jul-18

Phase Four
Part Terminate Corporate Bond with Insight. Complete
Invest proceeds with Insight LDI
Abbreviations:
LCIV - London Collective Investment Vehicle
DGF - Diversified Growth Fund
DD - Due Diligence
JH - Janus Henderson
JPM - JP Morgan
LDI - Liability Drive Investment

In Process

Jun-17
In Process

In Process

In Process

In Process

In Process

Committee
Instruction
2019

Committee Note

In Process

With
Committee

Complete

Mar-20

Page 33

Phase Three
Part Terminate Corporate Bond mandate
In Process
with Insight.

Sep-19

Apr-17

Invest proceeds with London CIV Ruffer DGF In Process

In Process

Jul-19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

Agenda Item 4

PENSION COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2020
Report title: 2019/20 Lambeth Pension Fund - The Annual Audit Plan
Wards: All
Portfolio: Councillor Andrew Wilson, Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Andrien Meyers, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 020 7926 0576,
ameyers@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
MAZARS LLP are the Council’s appointed external auditors. This report sets out details of their proposed
audit scope for the Lambeth Pension Scheme for the year ending 31 March 2020.

Finance summary
The audit fee payable is £16,170.00.

Recommendations
1

That Pension Committee notes the Planning Report from MAZARS LLP that relates to the Lambeth
Pension Fund’s financial accounts, as set out in Appendix 1.

2

That Pension Committee notes the preparatory activity undertaken and underway by Officers, as set
out in the main report.

Page 36
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The purpose of the audit planning report is to set out to the Pension Committee the key
considerations of planning for this year’s audit with a view to ensuring that the year-end activities
can be managed smoothly.

1.2

The responsibilities of the auditors are set out in Appendix one. The auditors are asked to treat the
Local Government Pension Scheme as a Stand-alone body, with a separate audit plan and report
to those charged with governance.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The precise approach to be adopted by the auditors is laid out in Appendix One to this report.

2.2

In general, officers have commenced and progressed preparations for financial year-end from a
much earlier point in the year. The auditors will be conducting an interim audit during February and
March 2020.

2.3

There has been extensive engagement between the Pension Administration Team and Investment
Team to ensure that planning for year-end is embedded, and therefore laying the groundwork for a
trouble-free exercise

3.

FINANCE

3.1

The audit fee payable is £16,170.00

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to maintain an adequate and effective
system of internal audit of its accounting records, and of its system of internal control in accordance
with proper practice.

4.2

Regulation 4 requires the Council to conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of
internal control which includes risk management arrangements. The Council is also under a duty to
conduct, at least once a year, a review of its system of internal audit. The findings of both reviews
must be considered together by the Corporate Committee.

4.3

There were no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Although the Pension Fund’s Statement of Accounts and Annual Report are a statutory document
whose format is dictated by statute and regulation, it is prepared by officers with input from the Fund’s
investment managers and the Fund custodian.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

None for the purposes of this report.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

None for the purposes of this report.

Page 37
8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None for the purposes of this report.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None for the purposes of this report

9.2

Health
None for the purposes of this report

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purposes of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purposes of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purposes of this report

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Work has already started and scheduled for completion by July 2020.
10.2 The table below details the stages and deadlines for implementing the recommendations:

Activity

Own by

Proposed Date

Initial Audit plan
meeting

Lambeth Pension Fund
and MAZARS LLP

January - February
2020.

Audit Plan to the
Pension Committee

Lambeth Pension Fund

11 March 2020

Interim Audit

Lambeth Pension Fund
and MAZARS LLP

March 2020

Field work

Lambeth Pension Fund
and MAZARS LLP

June – July 2020

Audit completion and
signoff of the annual
Report

Lambeth Pension Fund
and MAZARS LLP

July 2020

Update
At the initial meeting
discussed the Audit
timetable, field work and
completion time.

Page 38
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name and
Position/Title
Councillor Andrew
Wilson
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director, Finance and
Property
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Neda Chagleva,
Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Cabinet Member for Finance
and Performance

26.02.20

03.02.20

Finance and Investment

26.02.20

03.02.20

Finance and Investment

26.02.20

Finance and Investment

26.02.20

02.03.20

Legal and Governance

26.02.20

27.02.20

Legal and Governance

26.02.20

02.03.

Lambeth Directorate

Comments
in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
27.02.20
03.03.20
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
Appendix One – London Borough of Lambeth
2019/20 Audit Plan.

Page 39
Audit Strategy Memorandum

London Borough of Lambeth Pension
Fund
Year ending 31 March 2020

Page 40

CONTENTS
1.

Engagement and responsibilities summary

2.

Your audit engagement team

3.

Audit scope, approach and timeline

4.

Significant risks and key judgement areas

5.

Fees for audit and other services

6.

Our commitment to independence

7.

Materiality and misstatements

Appendix A – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund. It has been prepared for the sole use of
the Corporate Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in
respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a
third party.

2

Page 41

Mazars LLP
Tower Bridge House
St. Katharine’s Way
London
E1W 1DD

Corporate Committee
London Borough of Lambeth
Lambeth Town Hall
1 Brixton Hill
London
SW2 1RD

19 March 2020

Dear Members,
Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2020
We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund for the year ending 31
March 2020.
The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and
provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its
clients, Section 6 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors.
We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:
• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;
• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;
• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and
• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external
operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund which may affect the audit,
including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.
This document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, is the basis for discussion of our
audit approach, and any questions or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor.
This document also contains specific appendices that outline our key communications with you during the course of the audit, and
forthcoming accounting issues and other issues that may be of interest.
Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to continuously provide technical excellence with the highest level of service
quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or comments about this
document or audit approach, please contact me on 020 7063 4634.
Yours faithfully,

Lucy Nutley
Mazars LLP

3

Page 42

1.

ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES SUMMARY

Overview of engagement
We are appointed to perform the external audit of London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund (the Fund) for the year to 31 March 2020.
This is our second year of appointment. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/auditquality/statement-of-responsibilities/
Our responsibilities
Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice
issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below:

Audit
opinion

Going
concern
Consistency
report

Electors’
Fraud
rights

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.
Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material error and give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Fund for the year.

We are required to form and express an opinion on the consistency of the financial statements within the Fund’s
annual report and the Fund’s financial statements included in the Statement of Accounts of London Borough of
Lambeth.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us
about the accounting records of London Borough of Lambeth and consider any objection made to the accounts.
This would include an objection made to the accounts of the Fund included in the administering authority’s
financial statements. We also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the
audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom.

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities. The responsibility for safeguarding
assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with
governance and management. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and perform our audit so as to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.
As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those charged with governance as to their knowledge of
instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on management controls that mitigate the fraud risks.
The Fund is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting. As auditors, we are required to consider the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of
the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made.
For the purpose of our audit, we have identified the Corporate Committee as those charged with governance.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

4

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 43

2.

YOUR AUDIT ENGAGEMENT TEAM

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

5

2. Your audit
team

•
•
•

Lucy Nutley, Engagement Director
Lucy.Nutley@mazars.co.uk
020 7063 4634

•
•
•

Stuart Frith, Engagement Manager
Stuart.Frith@mazars.co.uk
020 7063 4409

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 44

3.

AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE

Audit scope
Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and
professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those
aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those affected by management
judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which
have been found to contain material errors in the past.
Audit approach
Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements. Our audit approach is a risk-based
approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of the financial statements. Once we
have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in response to this assessment.
If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide
controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to
our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and
comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures) and substantive analytical procedures.
Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of
controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and
disclosure.
Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in
section 7.
The diagram below outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.
•

Final review and disclosure checklist of financial

•

Updating our understanding of the Fund

statements

Initial opinion assessment

•

•

Final file review

•

Agreeing content of letter of representation

•

Reporting to Corporate Committee

•

Reviewing post balance sheet events

•

Signing our opinion

Completion
July 2020

Planning
January February 2020

•

Review of draft financial statements

•

Reassessment of audit strategy,

Fieldwork
June – July
2020

Interim
March 2020

revising as necessary
•

Delivering our planned audit testing

•

Continuous communication on emerging

•

Development of our audit strategy

•

Preliminary analytical procedures

• Agreement of timetables

Documenting systems and controls

•

•
•

Walkthrough procedures

Controls testing, including general
and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

issues
•

Clearance meeting

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

6

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 45

3.

AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Reliance on internal audit
Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures.
We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation
procedures.
Where we intend to rely on the work of internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit team and perform our own
audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.
Management’s and our experts
Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Fund’s financial statements. We also use experts to assist us to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.
Items of account
Disclosure notes on funding arrangements
and actuarial present value of contractual
retirement benefits.

Financial instrument disclosures

Management's expert

Our expert

Hymans Robertson

We make use of PWC actuarial services who are
commissioned by the NAO to review the national analysis
of pension trends and assumptions of the various LGPS
actuaries and consider the findings for potential impact on
the values included within the financial statements.

Mercers

We will review the output and associated analysis against
available information to confirm that the basis of the
assessments appears reasonable and the disclosures are
appropriate.

Service organisations
International Auditing Standards (UK) define service organisations as third party organisations that provide services to the Fund that are
part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are required to obtain an understanding of the services provided by
service organisations as well as evaluating the design and implementation of controls over those services. The table below summarises
the service organisations used by the Fund and our planned audit approach.
Items of account

Service organisation

Audit approach
Substantive testing of transactions occurring in the year,
income received and valuations applied to investments at
the year end.

Investment valuations and income along
with all related disclosures

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

7

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

Fund managers and
Custodians

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

We will seek an appropriate Type 1 or Type 2 report in
respect of the operation of systems by the service
organisation to give us assurance over their operation of
key controls. We will consider the findings of this review
and the impact on the overall control environment.

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 46

4.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant risks to the audit of financial
statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or standard, as defined below:
Significant risk

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, requires
special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the entity’s controls,
including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk

An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than a
significant risk. Enhanced risks incorporate but may not be limited to:

Standard risk

•

key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

•

other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing and
require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement, there are
no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential misstatements or the
likelihood of the risk occurring.

In assessing the significant risks and key judgement areas we have reviewed key documents and spoken to key members of
management. At this point, we have not performed a detailed review of systems. Should further significant risks arise from this work, we
will update the Committee accordingly.
The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant. We have
summarised our audit response to these risks on the next page.

High

Risk

1
2
Financial
impact

1

Management override of control

2

Valuation of unquoted investments

Low
Low

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

8

Likelihood

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

High

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

4.

Page 47

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS
(CONTINUED)

We provide more detail on the identified risks and our testing approach with respect to significant risks in the table below. An audit is a
dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will
report this to the Corporate Committee.
Significant risks
Description of risk
1

Planned response

Management override of controls
Management at various levels within an organisation
are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
their ability to manipulate accounting records and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which
such override could occur there is a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud on all audits.

2

We will address the risk through performing audit procedures,
covering a range of areas including (but not limited to):
•
•
•

accounting estimates included in the financial statements for
evidence of management bias;
any significant transactions outside the normal course of
business; and
journals and other adjustments recorded in the general ledger in
preparing the financial statements

Valuation of unquoted investments
As at 31 March 2019 the Pension Fund held
investments which were not quoted on an active
market with a fair value of £61.0m, accounting for
4.4% of the Fund’s net investment assets. Inherently
these assets are harder to value, as they do not have
publicly available quoted prices from a traded
market, and as such they require professional
judgement or assumptions to be made when valuing
them at year end.
As the pricing of these investment assets is subject
to judgements, they may be susceptible to pricing
variances due to the assumptions underlying the
valuation. We therefore consider that there is an
increased risk of material misstatement.

We plan to address this risk by completing the following additional
procedures:
•
•
•

•

agree holdings from fund manager reports to the global
custodian’s report;
agree the valuation to supporting documentation including
investment manager valuation statements and cash flows for any
adjustments made to the investment manager valuation;
agree the investment manager valuation to audited accounts or
other independent supporting documentation, where available;
and
where audited accounts are available, check that they are
supported by a clear opinion.

Revenue recognition
We have considered the presumed risk in relation to revenue recognition and have assessed that, due to the low inherent risk associated
with revenue in the pension fund, we can rebut the presumed risk.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

9

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 48

5.

FEES FOR AUDIT AND OTHER SERVICES

Fees for work as the Fund’s appointed auditor
The scale fee set by PSAA as communicated in our fee letter of 24 April 2019 is £16,170. At this stage we are planning to charge £3,000
for additional work we will have to undertake, as part of our audit of the 2019/20 financial statements. in relation to the triennial valuation
as at 31 March 2019.
Service

2018/19 fee

Code audit work

2019/20 fee

£16,170

£19,170

Fees for non-PSAA work

We confirm that we have not been separately engaged by the Fund to carry out additional work for the London Borough of Lambeth
Pension Fund. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 7.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

10

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 49

6.

OUR COMMITMENT TO INDEPENDENCE

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually, in writing, that
we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any matters or relationship which we
believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit team.
Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in
our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related
entities creating any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your
auditors.
We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and
independence. These policies include:
•

all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

•

all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethics training;

•

rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team;

•

use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved
in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, and Mazars LLP are
independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity,
objectivity or independence please discuss these with Lucy Nutley in the first instance.
Prior to the provision of any non-audit services, Lucy will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the impact that
providing the service may have on our auditor independence.
No threats to our independence have been identified.
Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

11

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 50

7.

MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS

Summary of initial materiality thresholds
Threshold

Initial threshold

Overall materiality

£21.6m

Performance materiality

£15.1m

Specific materiality – Fund Account

£5.9m

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Corporate Committee

£432,000

Materiality
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a
whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a
combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a
group and not on specific individual users.
The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information
needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:
•

have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

•

have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

•

understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

•

recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration
of future events; and

•

will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.
Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for
determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and
determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.
The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either
individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.
We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused
us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage.
Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of Net Assets. We will identify a figure for materiality but identify separate levels
for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all identified errors will be reported to the Corporate
Committee.
We consider that net assets remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as such, we base our materiality levels around
this benchmark. We expect to set a materiality threshold at 1.5% of Net Assets. This is a change from the benchmark used in 2018/19
which was 1.0% of net assets, reflecting our first year of appointment.
1. Engagement and
responsibilities

12

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 51

7.

MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Therefore, based on the value of Net Assets incurred in 2018/19 we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31 March 2020 to
be in the region of £21.6m (£20.7m in the prior year).
After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.
Performance Materiality
Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole to
reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality
for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we
have applied 70% of overall materiality as performance materiality.
Specific materiality
If, in specific circumstances of the entity, there is one or more particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which
misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of financial statements, the auditor shall also determine the materiality level or levels to be
applied to those particular transactions, account balances or disclosures.
•

Contributions receivable

•

Benefits payable

Specific materiality has been assessed as the higher of 10% of contributions receivable or benefits payable. Based on the 2018/19
financial statements we anticipate a specific materiality of £5.9m. We will continue to monitor materiality through the audit to ensure it is
set at an appropriate level.
Misstatements
We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors
identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Corporate Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider
would not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on the
financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £432,000 based on
2% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Lucy.
Reporting to the Corporate Committee
To comply with International Standards on Auditing (UK), the following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit
Committee:
•

summary of adjusted audit differences;

•

summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

•

summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

13

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 52

APPENDIX A – KEY COMMUNICATION POINTS
ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To
Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:
Required communication

Audit Strategy
Memorandum

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider
responsibilities



Planned scope and timing of the audit



Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement



Our commitment to independence



Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors



Materiality and misstatements



Fees for audit and other services



Audit Completion
Report




Significant deficiencies in internal control



Significant findings from the audit



Significant matters discussed with management



Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement



Summary of misstatements



Management representation letter



Our proposed draft audit report



1. Engagement and
responsibilities

14

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Fees

6.
Independence

7. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

Page 53

Agenda Item 5

Pensions Board 29 January 2020
Pensions Committee 11 March 2020
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Risk Register
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance - Councillor Andrew Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director, Finance and Investment – Fiona McDermott
Contact for enquiries: Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions – 07854
752186, ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report provides the board with details of the arrangements in place to manage risk
within the Lambeth Pension Fund as shown in the Risk Register (Appendix 1).

Finance summary
There are no direct financial implications in agreeing this report outside of the on-going
administration and governance of the pension fund.

Recommendations
Pensions Board
1.
To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional
actions proposed to mitigate risk.
2.

To recommend any possible amendments to the Pensions Committee.

Pensions Committee
1.
To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional
actions proposed to mitigate risk.

Page 54
1

CONTEXT

1.1

Effective risk management is an essential part of any governance framework as it
identifies risks and the actions required to mitigate their potential impact. For a
pension fund, those risks will come from a range of sources including:








the funding position;
investment performance;
membership changes;
benefits administration;
costs;
communications; and,
financial systems.

1.2

The risks that have been identified are incorporated into the Fund’s Risk Register.

1.3

The Pensions Board will monitor the Risk Register as part of its scrutiny role in
relation to risk and compliance and forward any specific recommendations or
concerns to the Pensions Committee. However, the Pensions Committee is the
ultimate risk owner for the Lambeth Pension Fund and therefore an updated Risk
Register is brought to the Committee on an annual basis.

2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1

The updated Risk Register, which is in line with the Corporate Risk Register format,
is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.2

Risks are assessed in terms of the potential impact of the risk event should it occur,
and in terms of the likelihood of it occurring. These are then multiplied to produce an
overall risk score which are then used to prioritise the risk rating at high, medium or
low.

L I K E L I H O O D

THREAT

I M P A C T
Minor

(1)

Significant (2)

Serious

(4)

Major

Very Likely (4)

4

8

16

32

Likely (3)

3

6

12

24

Unlikely (2)

2

4

8

16

Very Unlikely (1)

1

2

4

8

L I K E L I H O O D

OPPORTUNITY

(8)

I M P A C T
Minor

(1)

Significant (2)

Serious

(4)

Major

Very Likely (4)

4

8

16

32

Likely (3)

3

6

12

24

Unlikely (2)

2

4

8

16

Very Unlikely (1)

1

2

4

8

(8)

Page 55
2.3

There are no red rated risks and four amber rated risks. The four risks are
summarised below and the mitigations are set out within Appendix 1:







PA9 - Incorrect, failed or late employee/employer contributions payments
received. Current rating is 6 and the target rating is 4.
PA24 - Remedies relating to the McCloud judgement that need to be made in
relation to the LGPS – Court of Appeal ruling that the transitional protections
awarded to some scheme members were unlawful on the grounds of age
discrimination and could not be justified. The current rating is 6 and the
target rating is 2.
PA25 - Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation – High court ruling
determination that UK defined pension schemes must compensate members
for differences attributable to GMP. The current rating is 6 and the target
rating is 2.
PA26 - GMP Reconciliation – Impact of the potential adjustments to be made
to members’ pensions as a result of the GMP reconciliation exercise. Current
rating is 6 and target rating is 2.

2.4

Further risks are likely to arise from changes in legislation and regulations or from
future decisions taken by the Pensions Committee. Where such new risks arise, they
will be added to the risk register, assessed, and mitigation actions identified.

2.5

The Risk Register is therefore reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. Since the
last Pension Board meeting the following changes to the Risk Register have been
made.

Reference Number

PA17 Actuarial
Valuation – Impact of
increases to employer
contributions

PA26 GMP
Reconciliation –
Impact of the potential
adjustments to be
made to members’
pensions

Previous
Rating

6

NA

Current
Rating

Reason for change

4

Results of Actuarial Valuation indicate
no significant adverse impact. Draft
Funding Strategy Statement issued to
employers for comment and Employer
Forum arranged for 14 January 2020.

6

New Risk. Outcome of the
reconciliation exercise anticipated
early/mid 2020. Early signs indicate no
material impact to the pension fund
however pensioner members
potentially identified as being in receipt
of overpaid pensions will be adversely
affected. There is also the potential
that the resources within the pensions
team will be stretched during the
rectification process.

3

FINANCE

3.1

There were no financial implications in relation to the items mentioned in this report.

Page 56
4

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and is for the
benefit of Council employees and outside organisations, which have entered into an
agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.

4.2

The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the best
possible financial return on the investments it administers within the investment
strategy framework.

4.3

There were no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Consultation with appropriate officers of the Council to establish the current risks
has been undertaken. The risk register is also presented at the Pensions Committee.

6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

The recommendations contained within the risk register are intended to mitigate
financial and reputational risk where possible.

7

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

None.

8

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None.

9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None for the purpose of this report.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purpose of this report.

9.3

Procurement
None for the purpose of this report.

9.4

Health
None for the purpose of this report.

10

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

10.1 Not applicable.

Page 57

Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew Wilson
Cabinet Member
Fiona McDermott
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson
Director of Finance and
Property
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance and Property
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
David Rose,
Democratic Services

Lambeth directorate/
division or partner
Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Performance
Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment/Finance
and Property
Finance and
Investment / Finance
and Property
Legal and
Governance
Legal and
Governance

Date Sent

Date
Received

08.01.2020

17.01.2020

08.01.2020

10.01.2020

08.01.2020

17.01.2020

08.01.2020

14.01.2020

08.01.2020

09.01.2020

Comments
in para:

08.01.2020

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
16.01.2020
17.01.2020
N/A
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
Appendix 1 – Lambeth Pension Fund Risk
Register

This page is intentionally left blank

Target
Rating

1

2

2

TREND

Target
Impact

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Target
Likelihood

Cause of risk

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact
Current
Rating

Risk description

Version 1.5

TYPE

Risk
Category

01/01/20

Owner

Ref

RISK REGISTER

Control measures / mitigations

People

Insufficient resource to
support requirements and
demands of Pension
Committee and Board.

Linda D'Souza
Committee and Board not operating effectively /Andrien
Meyers

PA2
(Operational)

Insufficient knowledge &
understanding of Pension
Governance &
Board / Committee in line
Compliance
with legislative
requirements.

Unable to effectively carry out Fund
management responsibilities

Linda D'Souza
/Andrien
Meyers

PA3
(Operational)

Increase in errors due to
Governance & more complex calculations
Compliance
required for transitional
protection regulations

Complaints leading to possible fines

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

PA4
(Operational)

Errors in producing complex
pension statements due to
Governance &
employer producing poor
Compliance
data recording of CARE
benefits

Complaints leading to possible fines

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

PA5
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Rise in ill health retirements
impact employer
organisations

Increased contribution rate

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

People

Concentration of knowledge
in small number of officers
and risk of departure of key
staff

Threat

PA1
(Operational)

Threat

Operational / Strategic risks
Officers assigned to Board and Committee.
2

2

4

Utilisation of additional resource (partners / consultants).
Regular training is provided via a structured training programme to allow members to
review and challenge recommendations.

2

2

4

2

2

4

Actuarial, investment, independent and officer advice is available to assist members in
making their decisions.

Threat

2

2

4

1

2

2

Threat

The Altair system calculates the transitional protection appropriately

2

2

4

1

2

2

Support may be obtained from the Local Government Association and Lambeth's Pension
Fund actuary, Hymans Robertson.

Recording of pay and pension contributions is checked thoroughly by officers and through
running Altair reports.

Threat

1) Possible measure of Insuring against the cost and impact
2

2

4

1

2

2

2) Actuarial Valuations (Latest valuation shows no significant increase than that
assumed).

Benefits applied incorrectly. Possible
complaints

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

PA6
(Operational)

2

2

4

1

2

2

2) Development of team members & succession planning currently being reviewed.
3) Further networking with other LGPS pension administration teams.

PA8
(Operational)

Customer
outcomes &
quality

Contract
Management

Inaccurate information in
public domain leads to
damage to reputation and
loss of confidence

Linda D'Souza
Reputational damage. GDPR / data protection
/ Linda
breach.
Osborne

1

2

2

1

2

2

2) Maintain constructive relationships with employing bodies to ensure that news is well
managed.
3) Ensure Lambeth Pension Fund website is kept up to date.

Financial failure of third
party supplier results in
service impairment and
financial loss

Service impairment and financial loss

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

PA7
(Operational)

Threat

1) Ensure that all requests for information (Freedom of Information, Member & Public
questions at Council, etc.) are managed appropriately and that Part 2 items remain so.

1

2

2

1

2

2

1) Reputable third party suppliers used and fall within pension administration framework
agreements.
2) Performance of third parties monitored.

PA9
(Operational)

PLT issue not yet resolved

Incorrect, failed or late employee/employer
contributions payments received

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

1) Monthly monitoring of pensions contributions against expectation.
Incorrect, failed or late
Governance & employee/employer
Compliance
contributions payments
received

2) Reminders sent to employers when they fail to meet payment deadline.
3

2

6

2

2

4
3) Scope to report persistent late payment to TPR

PA10
(Operational)

Information
Governance

PA11
(Operational)

Governance & Pensions Payroll not run, in
Compliance
time for month end.

Increase in WFH from January 2018

Data being misplaced, possible fines

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Staff absences

Pensioners do not receive their pension
payment

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

Increased chance of loss of
data from laptops and paper
copies when working from
home

1

2

2

1

2

2

Threat

4) Quarterly internal Audit.

2

2

4

1

2

2

1) Adherence to the Council's home working policy.
2) Ensure officers and Committee/Board members have an understanding of relevant
cyber securrity processes.
2) Paper copies with sensitive data not taken home.

1) Clear procedure on processing the payroll in place.
2) Further payroll/system training undertaken in 2018.

Page 59

1) Process notes in place.

Target
Impact

Target
Rating

4

1

2

2

4

2

-8

4

1

-4

2

2

4

2

2

4

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Strategy &
Finance

Bond yields fall

Leading to an increase in value of liabilities: a
0.1% reduction in the discount rate will
increase the liability valuation by 2%

Andrien
Meyers

PA15
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Pay & price inflation is
significantly more or less
than anticipated

An increase in CPI inflation by 0.1% will
increase the liability valuation by 1.4%

Andrien
Meyers

PA16
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Pensioners living longer

Adding one year to life expectancy will increase Andrien
the future service rate by 0.8%
Meyers

PA18
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

The London CIV and all
Investment Managers fail to
achieve performance targets
over the longer term

A shortfall of 0.1% on the investment target will Andrien
result in an annual impact of £2.6m
Meyers

PA19
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Inappropriate long-term
investment strategy

Impact of increases to employer contributions

Andrien
Meyers

PA20
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Asset reallocations in
volatile markets

May lock in past losses

Andrien
Meyers

PA21
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

PA22
(Operational)

PA23
(Operational)

PA24
(Strategic)

Insufficient attention to
social, ethical &
environmental risks

Leads to reputational damage and/or financial
loss

Andrien
Meyers

Failure to comply with
Governance & legislative requirements e.g.
Compliance
ISS/FSS/Governance
Policy/FOI

Resulting in the matter being escalated to the
scheme advisory board and/or the pensions
regulator

Andrien
Meyers

Governance & Failure to sign-off accounts
Compliance
and annual report on time

Qualified audit opinion

Andrien
Meyers

Impact of increases to employer contributions

Andrien
Meyers

Strategy &
Finance

Remedies relating to the
McCloud judgement that
need to be made in relation
to the LGPS

Court of Appeal ruling that the transitional
protections awarded to some scheme
members were unlawful on the grounds of
age discrimination and could not be
justified.

1

2

2

1

4

4

1

4

4

1) The actuary Hymans Robertson use long term longevity projections in the actuarial
valuation process.
2) Lambeth has joined Club Vita, which looks at mortality rates that are employer specific.

2

1) Officers to consult and engage with employer organisations in conjunction with the
actuary. Draft FSS issued to employers for comment 11/12/19. Employer Forum arranged
for 14 January 2020
2) Actuary will assist where appropriate with stabilisation and phasing in processes.
3) Allowance for increases made within budgets.

Threat

Andrien
Meyers

2

2

2

4

1

2

Threat

Impact of increases to employer contributions

2

1

4

4

1

4

4

1) The Investment Management Agreements clearly state Lambeth Pension Fund's
expectations in terms of performance targets.
2) The LCIV and Investment manager performance is reviewed on a quarterly basis.
3) Pensions Committee should be positioned to move quickly if it is felt that targets will not
be met.
4) The Fund's investment management structure is highly diversified, which lessens the
impact of manager risk compared with less diversified structures.
5) Update on the LCIV is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda, with a presentation
from the LCIV once a year at the Committee meeting.

Threat

Actuarial Valuation

1

1

4

4

1

4

4

1) Use of investment consultants to monitor investment strategy.
2) Setting of Fund specific benchmark relevant to the current position of fund liabilities.
3) Overall asset allocation regularly monitored by the Pensions committee.
4) Fund manager targets set based on market benchmarks or absolute return measures.

Threat

Strategy &
Finance

1) Fund employers should monitor own experience.
2) Assumptions made on pay and price inflation (for the purposes of IAS19/FRS17 and
actuarial valuations) should be long term assumptions.
3) The fund holds investment in corporate bonds to mitigate some of the risk.
4) Current investment strategy review has addressed liability protection.

1

2

2

1

2

2

1) Committee takes a long term view of strategic asset allocation.
2) Committee acts on advice from external parties.

1

1

1

1

1

1

1) Ensure no conflict of interests between Council and Pension Fund
2) Review ISS in relation to published best practice (e.g. UN Principles for responsible
investment)
3) Ensure fund managers are encouraged to engage and to follow the requirements of the
published ISS.
4) The Fund is now a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, which raises
officer awareness of ESG issues and facilitates engagement with fund managers.

1

1

1

1

1

1

1) Ensure cooperative dialogue between committee and board.

1

1

1

1

1

1

1) Ensure internal audit work plan is fulfilled on a quarterly basis.
2) Early dialogue and close working with the external auditor

3

2

6

1

2

2

Allowance has been made in the MTFS (1% of pay)

Page 60

PA17
(Strategic)

1) The actuarial funding navigator report is received quarterly and provides an early
warning of any potential problems.
2) Early consultation with the actuary will take place with regard to the 2019 valuation.
3) Current investment strategy review has addressed liability protection.

Threat

PA14
(Strategic)

Threat

Growth &
Opportunities

Threat

PA13
(Operational)

Prompt action to respond to/rectify identified issue

Threat

Governance review identifies
Governance & fundamental issues that
Compliance
significantly impact the
pension fund

Threat

Improved service

PA12
(Operational)

Control measures / mitigations

Threat

Governance review identifies
opportunities to improve
Improvements identified
service efficiency

Ref

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Risk description

TREND

Target
Likelihood

2

Adverse impact on the Pension Fund

Risk
Category

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact
Current
Rating
2

TYPE

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Threat

Cause of risk

Opportunity

Version 1.5

Threat

01/01/20

Owner

RISK REGISTER

High court ruling determination that UK
defined pension schemes must
compensate members for differences
attributable to GMP.

Impact of increases to employer contributions

PA26
(Operational)

Customer
outcomes &
quality

GMP values recorded on HMRC database
Guaranteed Minimum
differs to that recorded by Lambeth
Pension (GMP) reconciliation Pensions resulting in under and
overpayment of pensions.

Andrien
Meyers

Rectification of under/overpayment of pensions Linda
resulting in LGPS member complaints and
D'Souza/
reputational damage.
Linda Osborne

3

3

2

2

6

6

1

2

2

1

2

TREND

Guaranteed Minimum
Pension (GMP) equalisation

Target
Rating

Strategy &
Finance

Target
Impact

PA25
(Strategic)

Target
Likelihood

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact
Current
Rating

Cause of risk

TYPE

Risk description

Ref

Risk
Category

Threat

Version 1.5

Threat

01/01/20

Owner

RISK REGISTER

Control measures / mitigations

Allowance has been made in the MTFS (1% of pay)

2

1) Allowance has been made in the MTFS (also enveloped in the 1% of pay)
2) Issue 'plain English' communications to affected members
3) Create simple rectification processes including a GMP reconciliation
overpayment/underpayment policy
4) Increase resources within the pensions team to effectively manage the rectification
process

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Risk Assessment Matrix

LIKELIHOOD

Threats

IMPACT

Very Likely (4)
Likely (3)
Unlikely (2)

Significant (2)

Serious (4)

Major (8)

4

8

16

32

3

6

12

24

2

4

8

16

1

2

4

8

LIKELIHOOD

Opportunity

IMPACT

Very Likely (4)
Likely (3)
Unlikely (2)
Very Unlikely (1)

Minor (1)

Significant (2)

Serious (4)

Major (8)

4

8

16

32

3

6

12

24

2

4

8

16

1

2

4

8

Page 63

Very Unlikely (1)

Minor (1)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65

LIKELIHOOD RATING EXAMPLES
Very Unlikely (1)
: Highly unlikely but may occur in exceptional circumstances
: Less than 25% chance of occurring

Unlikely (2)
: Not expected but there is a chance it may occur at some time
: Less than 50% chance of occuring

Likely (3)
: There is a strong possibility the event will occur as there is a history
of past occurrences
: 50-75% chance of occurring

Very likely (4)
: The event is expected to occur as there is a history of regular
occurrences
: 75-100% chance of occurring

Page 66

IMPACT RATING EXAMPLES
Minor (1)

: Minor impact on service, typically up to one day
: Financial loss under £5,000
: Isolated service user complaints contained within business unit / division
: Minor injury / discomfort to an individual or several people

Significant (2)
: Service Disruption 2-3 days
: Financial loss between £5,000 and £50,000
: Adverse local media coverage/lots of service user complaints
: Failure to achieve one of more service plan objectives
: Injury to an individual or several people
Serious (4)
: Service disruption 4-5 days
: Financial loss between £50,000 to £500,000
: Adverse national media coverage
: Failure to achieve a strategic plan objective
: Serious/disabling injury to an individual or severak people
Major (8)
: Service disruption > 5 days
: Financial loss in excess of £500,000
: National publicity more that three days. Possible resignation of leading
member of chief officer
: Failure to achieve a corporate objective
: Fatality to an individual or several people

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 77
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 113
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 115
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 121
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 131
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 163
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Pensions Committee Work Programme 2019/20

11 March 2020
Start time 17:30
Report Title
Training Pensions Administration
Investment Performance Report
Part ii Investment Performance (Manager) Report
Part ii London CIV Presentation
Part ii Investment Strategy Statement
Part ii DGF Manager Presentation LCIV Ruffer and Pyrford
Part ii DGF Manager Presentation AVIVA
Pension Fund Risk Register and KPI’s
Action Log and Work Programme
Closing and Audit 2019/20 Plan

Comments

Page 175

Lead Officer/ Author
Linda D’Souza
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers
Andrien Meyers/Linda D’Souza
Shaughna Phillips
Andrien Meyers

Agenda Item 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Pensions Committee Action Monitoring
Awaiting and Overdue
Meeting
Date

Due
Date

Agenda
Item

27.03.19

24.07.19

3 and 4

27.03.19

11.03.20

3

18.09.19

6

18.09.19

June
2020

5

18.09.19

11.03.20

6

20.11.19

11.03.20

3

20.11.19

11.03.20

4

20.11.19

11.03.20

5

Mercer packs

Investment
Performance Report

Investment
Performance
(Manager) Report

Lambeth Pension
Fund - Investment
Performance Review
Lambeth Pension
Fund - Investment
Managers Summary
Investment
Performance Report

Action

Comments

Owner

To correct packs sent out to attendees for
ease of access (font sizes and clear printing).

Ongoing

Mercer

Andrien Meyers

Members did not
respond to the
request for
training, therefore
no precise
outcome to
include in the ISS.
However ESG
considerations are
covered in the ISS

Outside the
meeting

Members

It is not common
practice for
officers to do this;
elected members
might wish to
publicise this good
news

A report to be brought to June 2020 meeting
on the progress of the independent body,
Byhiras.

To report back to
the Committee

Andrien Meyers

To present the revised investment strategy at
the March 2020 committee meeting.

To report back to
the Committee

Andrien Meyers

To provide trend graphs in future reports.

In future agenda

Mercer

Outside the
meeting

Mercer

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

To input the outcomes of the ESG Investment
Beliefs training in the Investment Strategy
Review as part of the Triennial Valuation.

Lambeth to note movement to RBC in a formal
statement.

To provide a note explaining the material
Investment
ESG factors were investment decisions,
Performance Manager
particularly in relation to LDI yield curve; and
Report
the Fund’s sensitivity to inflation.
To share detail of fee savings based on
London CIV Update
instruction of Scheme Advisory Board and
CIPFA advice.

To report back to
the Committee

Page 177

24.07.19

Description

Meeting
Date

Due
Date

Agenda
Item

20.11.19

11.03.20

5

London CIV Update

20.11.19

11.03.20

5

London CIV Update

20.11.19

July
2020

5

London CIV Update

20.11.19

Sept.
2020

8

Action Log and Work
Programme

Description

Action

Comments

Owner

To provide details of the process and
consideration for moving out of the LCIV
To provide reassurance on the change in the
Chief Investment officers at the London CIV
To provide examples of good practice for
local investment in a presentation to the
Committee
To conduct LDI and local investment strategy
training sessions once consultation was
concluded

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

In future agendas

Andrien Meyers

In future agendas

Andrien Meyers

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

Depending on
outcome of RPI
consultation

Page 178

Implemented/Finished
No.

Due Date

Completed
Date

Meeting
Date

Agenda
Item

Description

27.03.19

24.07.19

27.03.19

3 and 4

2

24.07.19

24.07.19

27.03.19

5

LCIV Update

3

24.07.19

24.07.19

27.03.19

5

LCIV Update

4

24.07.19

24.07.19

27.03.19

7

Presentation from
RBC

5

24.07.19

24.07.19

27.03.19

5

LCIV Update

6

7

8

21.08.19

18.09.19

24.07.19

24.07.19

03.09.19

09.09.19

18.09.19

24.07.19

18.09.19

7

9

6

Training sessions

Permira Private
Debt
Presentation
London
Collective
Investment
Vehicle (LCIV)
Update
Investment
Performance
(Manager)
Report

Comments

Owner

Prior to future
meetings

Pensions team

In future reports

Andrien Meyers

In future reports

LCIV

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

In future
presentations

LCIV

Further details on Permira’s ESG would be
relayed to the Committee.

Outside the
meeting

Permira

The LCIV would provide the Committee with
data on divestment and low carbon funds,
but it was noted that boroughs needed to be
aligned and for investment to be via the
LCIV platform.

Outside the
meeting

LCIV

Attendees also noted that they were content
to move funds from MFS to the Royal Bank
of Canada (RBC) as soon as possible,
subject to the removal of the 4% of EOG
stock from their portfolio; and would provide
an update to the next meeting.

Outside the
meeting and
update at next
meeting

Andrien Meyers,
Mercers and
LCIV

To hold training sessions prior to future
meetings, on 24.07.19 to include a paper on
the fund’s investment beliefs, how the Fund
picked asset strategies and how Lambeth
compared to other boroughs (on activepassive investment).
To report back on other Pools’ trade union
and governance arrangements
To provide further information on current
total running costs contained in the
medium-term financial strategy.
Officers to inform RBC that the EOG
holding was the reason why the Lambeth
Pension Fund could not invest in this fund.
To provide further information on the LCIV’s
reserves in future presentations.

Page 179

1

Action

No.

Due Date

9

24.07.19

10

18.09.19

11

13

14

18.09.19

18.09.19

18.09.19

Meeting
Date

Agenda
Item

Description

10.09.19

18.09.19

6

Investment
Performance
(Manager)
Report

09.09.19

24.07.19

2

Minutes

18.09.19

24.07.19

24.07.19

20.11.19

20.11.19

6

6

6

7

Investment
Performance
(Manager)
Report
Investment
Performance
(Manager)
Report
Lambeth Pension
Fund - Investment
Managers
Summary
Lambeth Pension
Fund - Update On
Implementation Of
Investment
Strategy, And
Emerging Market
Equity

Action

Comments

Owner

To report back to
the Committee

Mercer, Internal
Audit, Christina
Thompson

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

To report back to
the Committee

Andrien Meyers,
Mercers and
LCIV

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers
and Mercer

To present the valuation results at the
November 2019 committee meeting.

To report back to
the Committee

Andrien Meyers

To provide members with a copy of JP
Morgan’s investment philosophy and
process

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

Mercer would provide their audit trail and
correspondence on LDI movement, noting
that they had pushed LDI; whilst Lambeth’s
officers would review transactions from
decision-making through to action. The
Acting Strategic Director of Finance and
Investment would reserve the right to
instruct Internal Audit if necessary.
To hold further training sessions at
appropriate times outside of meeting dates.
LCIV and officers to provide options of
emerging market managers and would
report back to the Committee.
The Chair asked that the Committee be
provided a summary note on LDIs and
transfer of assets, alongside the minutes
from March on LDIs.

Page 180

12

18.09.19

Completed
Date

No.

15

Due Date

18.09.19

Completed
Date

Meeting
Date

20.11.19

Agenda
Item

Description

Action

Comments

Owner

7

Lambeth Pension
Fund - Update On
Implementation Of
Investment
Strategy, And
Emerging Market
Equity

To provide members with an update of any
new investments in fossil fuels made my JP
Morgan.

To report back to
the Committee

Andrien Meyers

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

Outside the
meeting

Andrien Meyers

16

20.11.19

11.03.20

6

Triennial Valuation
2019

17

20.11.19

11.03.20

6

Triennial Valuation
2019

To share the Funding Strategy Statement
regarding negotiations on employer
contribution rates with other Pension Fund
employers.
To have all Pension Fund employers signoff the Funding Strategy Statement

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

